
 

City Council Meeting 
Regular Session 

February 25, 2025 



 

City Administrator Memo 



 

 

To Mayor and City Council 
From Ryan Heiar, City Administrator 
Date February 20, 2025 
Re City Council Agenda February 25, 2025 

Consent Agenda 
The following items are on the consent agenda and 
included in the packet: 

• City Council Minutes (02/11/25) 
• Change Order #4, Centennial Park Event Complex 

Project, Phase 1, Larson Construction Co. Inc., 
($3,047.50) 

• Pay Application #6, Centennial Park Event 
Complex Project, Phase 1, Larson Construction Co. 
Inc., $241,651.74 

• Claims 

Library Board Appointment  
The Mayor has appointed Stefanie Munsterman to fill a vacancy on the Library Board and 
is seeking Council confirmation of the appointment. Ms. Munsterman’s application is 
included in the packet. 

North Liberty Road Trail 
The City, via the IDOT, received 12 bids for the North Liberty Trail project, ranging from 
$1.082 to $1.429 million. A full list of the bids can be found in the packet as part of the 
recommendation letter from Shive Hattery. The apparent low and responsive bid was 
submitted by Metro Paver’s. The low bid is approximately $250k less than the engineer’s 
estimate of $1.331 million.  Shive Hattery and staff recommend approval and award of 
contract, pending IDOT review and concurrence. Staff anticipates receiving notice from 
the IDOT prior to Tuesday’s meeting.   

Zoning & Development Fees 
This staff-initiated update to the City’s Zoning and Development Fees proposes adding a 
fee for appeals to the zoning code, increases the variance fee and reduces the fee for 
site plan approval for properties less than one acre in size. Staff believes these updates as 
well as the remaining unchanged fees represent a reasonable amount for staff’s time to 
process the application. Related fees were reviewed for the Cities of Iowa City and 

Meetings & Events 
 
Tuesday, Feb 25 at 6:00p.m. 
City Council 
 
Tuesday, Mar 4 at 6:30p.m. 
Planning Commission 
 
Thursday, Mar 6 at 7:00p.m. 
Parks & Recreation Commission 
 
Tuesday, Mar 11 at 6:00p.m. 
City Council 



Coralville and the proposed fees 
would be the same or lower than 
both jurisdictions. The chart to 
the right compares current and 
proposed fees with the 
highlighted rows showing which 
fees are proposed to change. 

Centennial Park Event 
Hall & Amphitheater 
Naming Rights 
Agreement 
Staff is pleased to announce 
that Hy-Vee has pledged 
$750,000 to the Centennial Park Next Stage Project in exchange for naming rights to 
the Centennial Center and Amphitheater. The naming agreement, which is consistent 
with the City’s naming policy, outlines a 15-year, $50,000 annual contribution. The City is 
grateful for the support of Hy-Vee, and staff recommends approval of the agreement. 

UTV Ordinance Amendment 
The City Council adopted an ordinance amendment allowing UTVs to travel on City 
streets in 2023, subject to certain restrictions. In an abundance of caution, that ordinance 
contained a sunset clause to automatically repeal the permissive language at the end of 
2024. City staff has not received reports of significant issues arising from allowing UTVs 
to travel on City streets, and have drafted an amendment to restore the permissive 
language. 

Snow Emergency and Parking Appeals Ordinance 
Amendment 
The City’s parking ordinance contains certain provisions concerning the declaration of 
snow emergencies, and the process for appealing any citations that might arise from 
violations of parking restrictions during such an emergency. City staff is proposing an 
amendment to the ordinance to clarify the necessary criteria for snow emergencies, to 
streamline the procedure for their declaration, and to clarify the process for appealing 
contested parking citations. 

Service Current Fee Proposed Fee
Appeal $0 $300
Board of Adjus tment Variance Hearing $100 $300
Conditional Use Permit $300 $300
Driveway Permit $25 $25
Fence Permit $25 $25
Planned Area Development (PAD) Application $750 $750
Rezoning Application $300 $300
Sign Permit $50 $50
Preliminary Site Plan – 1 acre or less $750 $250
Preliminary Site Plan – Over 1 acre $750 $750
Zoning Certificate of Compliance Application $25 $25
Cons truction Permit $25 $25
Demolition Permit $25 $25

Preliminary Plat
$30/lot 

($300 
minimum)

$30/lot 
($300 

minimum)

Final Plat
$20/lot 

($300 
minimum)

$20/lot 
($300 

minimum)

Zoning & Development Fees



Zoning Code Ordinance Amendment 
The City recently prevailed in two separate requests appealing the Planning Director’s 
interpretation of certain provisions of the Zoning Code. Although the Zoning Board of 
Adjustment agreed with the Planning Director’s interpretation in both cases, staff is 
proposing to strengthen the Zoning Code to deter similar or nuanced requests for 
appeal. The changes pertain to strengthening and adding definitions, adding to the list of 
prohibited materials for fences and clarifying accessory structures and uses. There are no 
formal objections to the request. The Planning Commission unanimously recommended 
approval of the Ordinance at its February 4 meeting. Staff recommends approval as well. 



 

Agenda 



 

City of North Liberty – 2025  Updated February 21, 2025 9:00 a.m. 
Page: 1 

 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
Tuesday, February 25, 2025 

6:00 p.m. 
Regular Session 

Council Chambers 
360 N. Main Street 

1. Call to order   
 
2. Roll call 
 
3. Approval of the Agenda 
 
4. Consent Agenda 

A. City Council Minutes, Regular Session, February 11, 2025 
B. Centennial Park Event Complex Phase 1, Change Order Number 4, Larson 

Construction Co., Inc., ($3,047.50) 
C. Centennial Park Event Complex Phase 1, Pay Application Number 6, Larson 

Construction Co., Inc., $241,651.74 
D. Claims  

 
5. Public Comment 
 
6. Engineer Report  
 
7. City Administrator Report  
 
8. Mayor Report 

A. Proclamation of International Women’s Day and Women’s History Month 
 
9. Council Reports  

 
10. Library Board Appointment  

A. Affirm Mayoral appointment of Stefanie Munsterman to fill an upcoming 
vacancy on the Library Board (May 1, 2025 – June 30, 2026) 

 
11. North Liberty Road Trail Project 

A. Resolution Number 2025-27, A Resolution accepting the bid and authorizing 
execution of the Contract for the North Liberty Road Trail Project, North 
Liberty, Iowa  
 



 
 
City of North Liberty – 2025  Updated February 21, 2025, 9:00 a.m. 
Page: 2 

12. Zoning & Development Fees 
A. Resolution Number 2025-28, A Resolution establishing certain Zoning and 

Development Fees 
 

13. Centennial Park Event Hall and Amphitheatre Naming Rights Agreement 
A. Resolution Number 2025-29, A Resolution approving the Naming Rights 

Agreement between the City of North Liberty and Hy-Vee, Inc. that 
establishes the terms and conditions under which a sponsorship for 
Centennial Park Next Stage Park Project will be provided. 
 

14. Off-Road Utility Vehicles (UTVs) Ordinance Amendment 
A. Second consideration of Ordinance Number 2025-03, An Ordinance 

amending Chapter 75 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances governing 
the use of Off-Road Utility Vehicles (UTVs) 

 
15. Snow Emergency and Parking Citation Appeals Ordinance Amendment 

A. Second consideration of Ordinance Number 2025-04, An Ordinance 
amending Chapters 69 and 70 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances 
concerning Snow Emergencies and Contested Parking Citation Appeals 

 
16. Zoning Code Ordinance Amendment 

A. Second consideration of Ordinance Number 2025-05, An Ordinance 
amending Chapters 167 and 169 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances 
governing definitions of and regulations for fences and accessory structures 
and uses  

 
17. Old Business 
 
18. New Business 
 
19. Adjournment  



 

Consent Agenda 



 

City of North Liberty – 2025 
Page: 1 

City Council 
February 11, 2025 
Regular Session 

 
Call to order   
Mayor Hoffman called the Tuesday, February 11, 2025, Regular Session of the North Liberty City 
Council to order at 6:00 p.m. in Council Chambers at 360 N. Main Street. Councilors present: Brian 
Leibold, Paul Park, Erek Sittig, Brent Smith, and Brian Wayson.  
 
Others present: Ryan Heiar, Tracey Mulcahey, Josiah Bilskemper, Grant Lientz, Ryan Rusnak, and 
other interested parties.  
 
Approval of the Agenda 
Smith moved; Sittig seconded to approve the agenda. The vote was all ayes. Agenda approved.  
 
Consent Agenda 
Sittig moved, Wayson seconded to approve the Consent Agenda including the City Council 
Minutes, Regular Session, January 28, 2025; Liquor License Renewal for The Station; and the 
attached list of Claims.  The vote was all ayes. Consent Agenda approved.   
 
Public Comment 
No public comment was offered.  
 
City Engineer Report 
City Engineer Bilskemper reported on the I-380/Penn Street Project, Forevergreen Road/Jasper 
Avenue Project, Ranshaw Way Phase 6 Project, and the Centennial Events Center Project.  
 
City Administrator Report  
City Administrator Heiar reported on the 240 N. Main Street property purchase and the declared 
snow emergency.  Council discussed the report with Heiar.  
 
Mayor Report 
Mayor Hoffman reported he is meeting with Boy Scout Troop 216 this Sunday.  
 
Council Reports 
Councilor Smith reported on the Better Together recognition of Youth Council. Councilor Wayson 
reported on EMA budget process, the MPOJC meeting, and the CRANDIC Railroad decision to 
not proceed.  Councilor Sittig attended the MPOJC meeting and reported on the Trip Connect 
Lunch & Learn next week. He attended the Legislative Breakfast at the Cedar Rapids Airport and 
toured the new section of the airport opening later this month.  Councilor Park attended the Better 
Together event and offered thanks to South Slope for the 0% loan for the Centennial Events 
Center. Councilor Leibold attended the Agriculture Business Breakfast and thanked Collins 



City of North Liberty – 2025 
Page: 2 

Community Credit Union for hosting Coffee Connections.  He attended the Snuggie Crawl. 
Council discussed the South Slope loan.  
 
Off-Road Utility Vehicles (UTVs) Ordinance Amendment 
At 6:11 p.m., Mayor Hoffman opened the Public Hearing regarding proposed amendments to the 
UTV Ordinance.  No oral or written comments were received. The public hearing was closed at 6:12 
p.m. 
Wayson moved, Smith seconded to approve the first consideration of Ordinance Number 2025-
03, An Ordinance amending Chapter 75 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances governing the 
use of Off-Road Utility Vehicles (UTVs). After discussion, the vote was: ayes – Wayson, Sittig, Park, 
Leibold, Smith; nays – none. Motion carried.  
 
Snow Emergency and Parking Citation Appeals Ordinance Amendment 
At 6:12 p.m., Mayor Hoffman opened the Public Hearing regarding proposed amendments to 
Snow Emergency Ordinance and Parking Citation Appeals.  No oral or written comments were 
received. The public hearing was closed at 6:13 p.m.  
Sittig moved, Wayson seconded to approve the first consideration of Ordinance Number 2025-
04, An Ordinance amending Chapters 69 and 70 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances 
concerning Snow Emergencies and Contested Parking Citation Appeals.  The vote was: ayes – 
Sittig, Wayson, Park, Smith, Leibold; nays – none. Motion carried.  
 
Zoning Code Ordinance Amendment 
At 6:13 p.m., Mayor Hoffman opened the Public Hearing regarding proposed Zoning Code 
Ordinance amendment regarding fences and accessory structures.  No oral or written comments 
were received. The public hearing was closed at 6:14 p.m.  
Rusnak reported that staff and Planning Commission recommend approval of the amendment.   
Sittig moved, Smith seconded to approve the first consideration of Ordinance Number 2025-05, 
An Ordinance amending Chapters 167 and 169 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances governing 
definitions of and regulations for fences and accessory structures and uses. The vote was: ayes – 
Smith, Park, Sittig, Wayson, Leibold; nays – none. Motion carried.   
 
Lot 15 Deerfield Seventh Preliminary Site Plan 
Rusnak reported that staff and Planning Commission recommend approval of the application.   
No applicant presentation was offered.  
Wayson moved, Smith seconded to approve Resolution Number 2025-18, A Resolution approving 
the Preliminary Site Plan for Lot 15 Deerfield Seventh, North Liberty, Iowa. The vote was: ayes – 
Leibold, Wayson, Sittig, Smith, Park; nays – none. Motion carried.   
 
FY 2025-26 Budget  
Sittig moved, Leibold seconded to approve Resolution Number 2025-19, A Resolution setting 
time and place for a Public Hearing for the purpose of considering the Consolidated General Fund 
Tax Levy for the Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Budget. The vote was: ayes – Park, Sittig, Leibold, Wayson, 
Smith; nays – none. Motion carried.  
 



City of North Liberty – 2025 
Page: 3 

Greenbelt Trail Parts 3 & 4 Final Plats 
Wayson moved, Sittig seconded to approve Resolution Number 2025-20, A Resolution approving 
Off-site Utility Easement Agreement for Greenbelt Trail Part 3. The vote was: ayes – Leibold, 
Sittig, Smith, Park, Wayson; nays – none. Motion carried.  
Sittig moved, Wayson seconded to approve Resolution Number 2025-21, A Resolution approving 
the Surety Agreement for Greenbelt Trail Part 3 and 4 between the City of North Liberty and 
Greenbelt 3-4, LLC. The vote was: ayes – Leibold, Smith, Wayson, Sittig, Park; nays – none. Motion 
carried.  
Sittig moved, Wayson seconded to approve Resolution Number 2025-22, A Resolution approving 
the Final Plat for Greenbelt Trail, Part Three – North Liberty, Iowa.  The vote was: ayes – Sittig, 
Leibold, Smith, Park, Wayson; nays – none. Motion carried.  
Smith moved, Sittig seconded to approve Resolution Number 2025-23, A Resolution approving 
the Final Plat for Greenbelt Trail, Part Four – North Liberty, Iowa. The vote was: ayes – Sittig, 
Wayson, Park, Leibold, Smith; nays – none. Motion carried.   
 
North Liberty Road Trail Project 
At 6:21 p.m., Mayor Hoffman opened the Public Hearing regarding proposed plans, specifications, 
and estimate of cost for the North Liberty Road Trail Project. No oral or written comments were 
received.  The public hearing was closed at 6:21 p.m.  
Park moved, Leibold seconded to approve Resolution Number 2025-24, A Resolution finally 
approving and confirming plans, specifications, and estimate of cost for the North Liberty Road 
Trail Improvements Project.  After discussion, the vote was: ayes – Wayson, Smith, Park, Leibold, 
Sittig; nays – none. Motion carried.   
 
RISE Project Completion Settlement 
Sittig moved, Wayson seconded to approve Resolution Number 2025-25, A Resolution approving 
and authorizing the RISE Project Completion Settlement. The vote was: ayes – Sittig, Wayson, 
Smith, Park, Leibold; nays -none. Motion carried.   
 
Zoning Code Ordinance Amendment 
Sittig moved, Park seconded to approve the third consideration and adoption of Ordinance 
Number 2025-01, An Ordinance amending Chapter 168 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances 
pertaining to Residential District Dimensional Standards. The vote was: ayes – Smith, Sittig, Park, 
Wayson, Leibold; nays – none. Motion carried.  
 
Greenbelt Trail Part 8  
Park moved, Leibold seconded to approve the third consideration and adoption of Ordinance 
Number 2025-02, An Ordinance amending the Zoning Map District Designation for certain 
property located in North Liberty, Iowa from ID Interim Development District to RS-6 Single-Unit 
Residence District. The vote was: ayes – Park, Sittig, Smith, Leibold, Wayson; nays – none. Motion 
carried. 
Rusnak reported that staff and Commission recommend approval of the preliminary plat.  
No applicant presentation was offered.  
 



City of North Liberty – 2025 
Page: 4 

Sittig moved, Park seconded to approve Resolution Number 2025-26, A Resolution approving the 
Preliminary Plat for Greenbelt Trail Subdivision Part Eight, North Liberty, Iowa. After discussion, 
the vote was: ayes – Wayson, Park, Smith, Sittig, Leibold; nays – none. Motion carried.    
 
Old Business 
Councilor Smith asked about the Wayfinding Project.  Staff discussed with Council.  
 
New Business 
No new business was presented.  
 
Adjournment 
Park moved; Sittig seconded to adjourn at 6:30 p.m. The vote was all ayes. Meeting adjourned.     
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 
 
 
By:  __________________________ 

Chris Hoffman, Mayor  
 

Attest: ________________________ 
Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk 





241,651.74

02/18/2025Abby Foster



 

Mayor Report  



 

 

International Women’s Day and Women’s History Month 
 
WHEREAS, March 8 is observed around the world as International Women’s 

Day to celebrate the women’s achievements, raise awareness about 
discrimination, and take action to promote gender parity; and 

 
WHEREAS, the United States has since 1989 recognized March as National 

Women’s History Month; and 
 

WHEREAS, the United Nations has promoted the advancement of women 
throughout its 80-year history; and 

 
WHEREAS, many individuals and organizations in the community are working 

to ensure equity for women and girls; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Johnson County United Nations Association and over 20 
local businesses, non-profit organizations, and University of Iowa entities are 
sponsoring Night of 1000 Dinners, a community celebration of International 
Women’s Day on Thursday, March 6, 6:00 – 8:00 pm at the Unitarian Universalist 
Society in Coralville, to recognize women-led groups and initiatives advancing UN 
Sustainable Development Goal #3, Good Health and Well-Being.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED that I, Chris Hoffman, Mayor of 
North Liberty, proclaim March 8 as International Women’s Day and the Month of 
March as Women’s History Month in North Liberty, Iowa and call upon residents to 
recall the achievements of women and recommit to the goal of full gender parity. 

 

 

 

____________________________________________________ 

          Mayor Chris Hoffman  

Signed in North Liberty, Iowa 
this 25th day of February, 2025 



 

Library Board 
Appointment 



Subject: Board & Commission Application: Stefanie Munsterman

 
Name

 Stefanie Munsterman

I would like to serve on the

 
Library Board of Trustees

Planning & Zoning Commission

Address

 

1645 Aspen Court
North Liberty, Iowa 52317
United States
Map It

Phone

 (319) 329-1199

Email

 stefanie.munsterman@gmail.com

Place of employment

 Cedar Rapids Civil Rights Commission

Position

 Executive Director

Are you a North Liberty resident?

 Yes

Are you 18 years of age or older?

 Yes

Gender

 Female

Length of North Liberty residency

 I moved here in September from Cedar Rapids

Please give a brief statement of why you would like serve on this Board or Commission

 

Serving on a library board would allow me to actively contribute to our community by advocating for the
library and shaping its future direction while ensuring access to important resources for everyone. This
role would also let me fulfill my passion for reading and learning. 

Growing up, the library was my refuge, and I have immense respect for the work they do.

Being part of a Planning & Zoning Commission would enable me to directly influence the future of my

http://click.maudience.com/ls/click?upn=u001.ibGcaXOctpunmfYZUHihwG7HD4JvNjDVhDBvCFzKtplDbXZpx24dKH-2B25bUO-2F-2BpAmMY7jb2gEeUsIen49IyuT6rhLqL1UlAG-2BjTqBweMoE9FrCftOFR54QDezP-2FysHw9RjJOrDFUKlgEB7dS0P-2BjuA-3D-3DoPHO_h7XTDn4VWk1BzBVzuE9jjgzdTUQ4uj5ebejOzg4P4taoVGgsvqCbO1X3f5s7cfv-2FfJdpO-2BEss-2F20YsUNCJ0rYW6rUjBqr918FHhRePI5Xcnubhy22Dfq-2B3Upp4nI5ecV1as1jrwJnqWY9LZcuQYUkNKPZxo13Y8OIFrG7-2BRWwNTq53wkA5lU0jomJeZGdTM0HPcRfCgrIKI2Zi2PbsMLJaUE90TqlWBrsU6AtXJ-2BwZg-3D
mailto:stefanie.munsterman@gmail.com


community through land development decisions. I would be able to contribute to the overall vision for my
city's growth.

Please note any real estate, business or commercial interests within the City, other than your primary
residence, or the purpose of identifying any actual or potential conflicts of interest

 I have no potential conflicts of interest

Please give any other background or personal information that you feel would be helpful to the City
Council in making their decision:

 

Growing up, the library was my refuge, and I have immense respect for the work they do. It would be my
complete honor to serve on this board!

I have over 15 years of planning, zoning, and housing experience.

<~WRD0003.jpg>



 

North Liberty Road Trail 
Project  



 

 

 

Project # 2112209720 
 

 

February 20, 2025 
 
 
 
City of North Liberty 
ATTN:  Mr. Ryan Heiar, City Administrator 
P.O. Box 77 
North Liberty, Iowa 52317 
 
RE: North Liberty Road Trail 
 TAP-U-5557(623)--8I-52 
 
Dear Mr. Heiar: 
 
On February 18, 2025, the Iowa DOT received bids on behalf of the City of North Liberty for the above 
named project.  Per the apparent bid summary posted online by the DOT, twelve bids were received. 

The apparent low bid was received from Metro Pavers, Inc. of Iowa City, Iowa in the amount of 
$1,082,258.81.  The engineer’s estimate was $1,331,900.00. 

The DOT anticipates having the bid letting information for this project processed, and the Award 
Determination letter issued directly to the City (via e-mail) no later than Tuesday, February 25th. 

Contingent on Iowa DOT concurrence, we recommend award of the contract to Metro Pavers, Inc. 
based on their lowest responsive bid. 

Please contact our office if you have questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
SHIVE-HATTERY, INC. 
 
 
 
 
Josiah D. Bilskemper, PE 
JDB 
 
Enc. Iowa DOT Apparent Bid Summary 
 
Copy: Guy Goldsmith, Parks Superintendent 
 Michael Pentecost, Streets Superintendent 
 Tracey Mulcahey, Assistant City Administrator 
 Grant Lientz, City Attorney 
 Ryan Rusnak, City Planner 
 Eric Munchel, Shive-Hattery 



����������	
��	�����������	�	���

�������� �����������

��� !� 

"#$%&'()*+,)-./-01)"-

233�!��456789:6�7

;<==>?@�<?A<A

BCD#EF&)($)GHIJK()IKFG)$LMKL&

7�		��N�9O�P�QRS�TUTV9VTWVVVXWYTZ

[\]̂_\̀ab

c((E'dJ&L(G Q "MEL)d$MF&#G ZX efc g 4h���	

���i>Aj k�l�	�l�T9QR9TVS�QQmTV�6n

cCCE#&L()IKFG)E#&)GHI%&'()($)'dELD&)E()(d&)G$M&)FKG'#&(K$L)$o)*c+pq

r�ll�� 6������	�P�l� r�ll����� �r4�s �	�t

uvqwp)"cxvwyz)*{|} n4ZRU ~}0�� �0z/1-z-.1}10

"vqvwyp{)|p{qwc|qpwy)*{|} 24ZTU �}/.� �0z/��z�-~}/1

�)f)�)|p{yqwB|q*p{z)��| ��URV 0�}��� �0z-/.z0�/}�~

u*+�vyq)|p{|wvqvz)*{|} n�T�Y �}/~� �0z-0�z�-�}1/

�ppuvwc{�)|pw"} r�ZZU �}/�� �0z-��z���}./

qy|�*���w*v)v�|cxcq*{�)|p} !UTU �}.1� �0z-.�z1�1}./

q�)|p{|wvqvz)*{|} �UZZ �}.�� �0z-�/z-/~}//

yqwv�)|p{yqwB|q*p{)|p}z)*{|} !XRU �}//� �0z-�.z///}//

x*vq�)|p{yqwB|q*p{)|pw"pwcq*p{ ��UZV �}/-� �0z�-�z1�~}//

u||cwq��)*u"wpxvuv{q)|p})f)c��*�)+�c

u||cwq��)*u"wpxvuv{q)|p
n3UYQ �}-�� �0z���z�~-}/.

�*��)��*qqvwy)|p{yqwB|q*p{)|p})+���c)��|)*{|} r�QRQ �}0�� �0z~-.z-0�}1.

vcyqvw{)*p�c)v�|cxcq*{�)c{+)|p{|wvqvz)��| 46UVX �}0.� �0z~-�z��-}��



North Liberty – 2025  Resolution Number 2025-27 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2025-27 
 

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION 
OF THE CONTRACT FOR THE NORTH LIBERTY ROAD TRAIL 
PROJECT, NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA: 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council sought bids for the North Liberty Road Trail Project through 

the Iowa Department of Transportation;  
 

WHEREAS, twelve contractors submitted responsive bids for the project; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the low base bid for the project was from Metro Pavers, Inc. in the amount of 
$1,082,258.81 ; and  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the North Liberty Road Trail Project is 
authorized and the bid from Metro Pavers, Inc. hereby accepted and approved for the project at 
an amount of $1,082,258.81 as set forth therein.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Contract between the Owner and the Contractor is 

approved and that the Mayor is authorized to execute said agreement.  
 

 APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 25th day of February, 2025. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the 
City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 
 



Zoning and 
Development Fees 



North Liberty – 2025  Resolution Number 2025-27 
Page 1 

Resolution No. 2025-27 
 

RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING CERTAIN ZONING AND 
DEVELOPMENT FEES 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA: 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council established fees for Zoning and Development services in 

Resolution Number 13-144 approved on November 12, 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, City staff has reviewed and provides its recommendation to the City Council 

concerning zoning and development fees; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined the following fees to be appropriate and 

reasonable.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the following fee schedule is hereby 
approved and adopted and shall be effective immediately upon adoption:  
 

Appeal………………………………………………………………………………………………..$300.00* 

Board of Adjustment Variance Hearing ..................................... $300.00  
Conditional Use Permit........................................................................ $300.00  
Driveway Permit ...................................................................................... $ 25.00  
Fence Permit ............................................................................................. $ 25.00  
Planned Area Development (PAD) Application .................... $750.00  
Rezoning Application ............................................................................ $300.00  
Sign Permit ................................................................................................. $ 50.00  
Preliminary Site Plan – 1 acre or less  ............................................ $250.00  
Preliminary Site Plan – Over 1 acre  ............................................... $750.00  
Zoning Certificate of Compliance Application ....................... $ 25.00 
Construction Permit .............................................................................. $ 25.00 
Demolition Permit .................................................................................. $ 25.00 
Preliminary Plat ........................................................................................ $ 30.00 
                                                                           per lot, $300 minimum    
Final Plat ...................................................................................................... $ 20.00 
                                                                           per lot, $300 minimum    
* Fee returned to applicant if decision of the Code Official is reversed. 
 



North Liberty – 2025  Resolution Number 2025-27 
Page 2 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 25th day of February, 2025. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY:  
 
 
_____________________________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR  
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the 
City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted.  
 
 
_______________________________________  
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 



 

Centennial Park Event Hall 
and Amphitheatre Naming 

Rights Agreement  





















North Liberty – 2025                Resolution 2025-29 
Page: 1 

Resolution No. 2025-29 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE NAMING RIGHTS 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY 
AND HY-VEE, INC. THAT ESTABLISHES THE TERMS 
AND CONDITIONS UNDER WHICH A SPONSORSHIP 
FOR CENTENNIAL PARK NEXT STAGE PARK PROJECT 
WILL BE PROVIDED  

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, 
IOWA: 
 

WHEREAS, the City of North Liberty is undertaking the Centennial Park Next 
Stage Project (the Project); and 

 
WHEREAS, Hy-Vee, Inc. is offering a sponsorship of $750,000 for the Project 

in exchange for naming rights to certain portions of Centennial Park, specifically the 
Event Hall and Amphitheatre; and  

 
WHEREAS, it is the parties’ desire to agree and establish, in writing, their 

understanding regarding said agreement and the terms and conditions.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that that the Naming Rights Agreement 

between the City of North Liberty and the Hy-Vee, Inc. is approved for the Centennial 
Park Next Stage Project, North Liberty, Iowa. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized 

and ordered to execute the agreement. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 25th day of February, 2025. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting 
of the City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the 
above was adopted. 
 
________________________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

Off-Road Utility Vehicles 
(UTVs) Ordinance 

Amendment  



ORDINANCE NO. _______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 75 OF THE NORTH LIBERTY CODE OF 
ORDINANCES GOVERNING THE USE OF OFF-ROAD UTILITY VEHICLES 

(UTV’s) 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT OF CHAPTER 75. Chapter 75.07 of the North Liberty Code of 
Ordinances is amended to read as follows: 
 

75.07 OPERATION ON PUBLIC PROPERTY.  
1. It is unlawful for any person to operate any all-terrain vehicle (ATV), off-road 
motorcycle, or off-road utility vehicle on roadways, streets, highways or other 
public property within the corporate City limits, unless said operation strictly 
complies with one or more of the exceptions set forth in Iowa Code Section 
321.234A or this Chapter. 

2. Parks and Other City Land. ATVs, snowmobiles and UTVs shall not be operated 
in any park, on any trail, on any playground, or upon any other City-owned 
property without the express permission of the City, with the exception of the 
operation of snowmobiles on designated routes.  

3. The provisions of Section 75.07(2) concerning the prohibition of operation of 
UTV’s on City-owned property notwithstanding, properly equipped UTVs may be 
operated in accordance with the requirements of Section 75.09 upon any City 
roadway, and may utilize City-owned driveways, lanes, and parking lots. This 
subparagraph shall not be construed as permitting the use of UTVs on parks, 
trails, or playgrounds. This subparagraph 75.07(3) shall be automatically repealed 
and be of no further force or effect as of December 31, 2024. 

 
SECTION 2.  AMENDMENT OF CHAPTER 75. Chapter 75.09 of the North Liberty Code of 
Ordinances is amended to read as follows: 
 

75.09 OPERATION OF UTVs 
Operators of UTVs must adhere to the following equipment requirements and 
restrictions while operating UTVs within the City limits. 

1. Operators of UTVs within City limits must be 18 years of age or older and 
possess a valid driver's license. 



2. A person shall not operate a UTV within the City limits unless the operator has 
proof of insurance complying with that required of an operator of a motor vehicle 
pursuant to applicable provisions of the Iowa Code, Rules and Regulations, 
including but not limited to Iowa Code Sections 321.20B and 321A.21. 

3. Owners of UTVs operated within City limits shall register their UTV with the 
Iowa Department of Natural Resources, and proof of such registration shall be 
provided, upon request, to any peace officer requesting it. Out-of-state UTV 
operators must provide appropriate proof of registration from their home state 
upon request by any peace officer. 

4. UTVs may only be operated on the roadways between the hours of 6:00 a.m. 
and 10:30 p.m. 

5. Operators of UTVs must adhere to noise restrictions set forth under North 
Liberty Code Chapter 53. 

6. UTVs must display lighted headlamps and taillamps at all times while the vehicle 
is operated on City streets or highways. 

7. Operators of UTVs must adhere to all traffic and parking laws, codes, rules, and 
regulations applicable to other motor vehicles, unless directed otherwise by this 
chapter. 

8. UTVs must be equipped with: 

A. Operational turn signal lamps with a manually operated switch 
controlled by the driver. 

B. Operational speedometer, calibrated in miles per hour, which is fully 
illuminated when the headlamps are activated. 

C. Operational horn with a switch controlled by the driver. 

D. Two operational headlamps and taillamps must be affixed to each side 
on the front and back of the UTV. Taillamps shall be red and include a stop 
lamp actuated by pressing the brake pedal. The use of lightbars, 
spotlights, or decorative lights is not permitted while the UTV is being 
operated on City streets or highways. 

E. Rear-facing mirror providing the operator with a clear view of the rear. 

F. Operational muffler, working in good order, which complies with the 
standards and procedures required by Iowa Code Section 321I.12 and 
North Liberty Code of Ordinances Chapter 53. 



9. All occupants, except as noted below, must wear safety belts or safety 
harnesses which meet the definition of a safety belt or safety harness set forth by 
Iowa Code Section 321.445 while the UTV is in motion. 

A. Children under one year old and weighing less than 20 pounds must be 
secured in a rear-facing child restraint system while the UTV is motion. 

B. Children ages one to six years must be secured in a child restraint 
system (safety seat or booster seat) while the UTV is in motion. 

(1) A child restraint system is a specially designed seating system, 
including a belt positioning seat or booster seat which meets 
federal motor vehicle safety standards. The child restraint system 
must be used in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions, 
the child must be secured in the child restraint, and the child 
restraint must be properly secured to the UTV. 

C. No animals will be transported in the cargo portion or bed of a UTV 
unless they are contained within an enclosure secured to the UTV. 

10. UTV doors or nets must be closed during operation if so equipped. 

11. The number of passengers in a UTV shall not exceed the number of factory-
installed seats in the UTV. 

12. No open containers of alcohol shall be allowed while the UTV is being operated. 

13. Drivers may not operate a UTV under the influence of intoxicating liquor or 
narcotics as prescribed under Iowa Code Chapter 321J. 

14. No UTV will be operated in a careless or reckless manner so as to: endanger 
any person; cause injury or damage to person or property; create unnecessary 
skidding or sliding; or cause a wheel or wheels to lose traction or contact with the 
ground. 

15. This Section 75.09 shall be automatically repealed and be of no further force 
or effect as of December 31, 2024. 

 
SECTION 3.  REPEALER.  All Ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions 
of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 4.  SCRIVENER’S ERROR.  The correction of typographical errors which do not affect 
the intent of the ordinance may be authorized by the City Clerk or the Clerk’s designee without 
further public hearing. 
 



SECTION 5.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be 
adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 
Ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 
unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 6. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final 
passage, approval and publication as provided by law.  
 
First reading on ____________________, 2025. 
Second reading on ____________________, 2025. 
Third and final reading on ____________________, 2025. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
_______________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR    
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the 
City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
_______________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 
I certify that the forgoing was published as Ordinance No.                    in the Cedar Rapids Gazette 
on the _____ day of _________________, 2025.   
 
_______________________________      
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



North Liberty – 2025  Ordinance Number 2025-03 
Page 1 
 

Ordinance No. 2025-03 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 75 OF THE NORTH 
LIBERTY CODE OF ORDINANCES GOVERNING THE USE OF 
OFF-ROAD UTILITY VEHICLES (UTVs) 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT OF CHAPTER 75. Chapter 75.07 of the North Liberty Code of 
Ordinances is amended to read as follows: 
 

75.07 OPERATION ON PUBLIC PROPERTY.  
1. It is unlawful for any person to operate any all-terrain vehicle (ATV), off-road 
motorcycle, or off-road utility vehicle on roadways, streets, highways or other 
public property within the corporate City limits, unless said operation strictly 
complies with one or more of the exceptions set forth in Iowa Code Section 
321.234A or this Chapter. 

2. Parks and Other City Land. ATVs, snowmobiles and UTVs shall not be operated 
in any park, on any trail, on any playground, or upon any other City-owned 
property without the express permission of the City, with the exception of the 
operation of snowmobiles on designated routes.  

3. The provisions of Section 75.07(2) concerning the prohibition of operation of 
UTV’s on City-owned property notwithstanding, properly equipped UTVs may be 
operated in accordance with the requirements of Section 75.09 upon any City 
roadway, and may utilize City-owned driveways, lanes, and parking lots. This 
subparagraph shall not be construed as permitting the use of UTVs on parks, 
trails, or playgrounds.  

 
SECTION 2.  AMENDMENT OF CHAPTER 75. Chapter 75.09 of the North Liberty Code of 
Ordinances is amended to read as follows: 
 

75.09 OPERATION OF UTVs 
Operators of UTVs must adhere to the following equipment requirements and 
restrictions while operating UTVs within the City limits. 

1. Operators of UTVs within City limits must be 18 years of age or older and 
possess a valid driver's license. 



North Liberty – 2025  Ordinance Number 2025-03 
Page 2 
 

2. A person shall not operate a UTV within the City limits unless the operator has 
proof of insurance complying with that required of an operator of a motor vehicle 
pursuant to applicable provisions of the Iowa Code, Rules and Regulations, 
including but not limited to Iowa Code Sections 321.20B and 321A.21. 

3. Owners of UTVs operated within City limits shall register their UTV with the 
Iowa Department of Natural Resources, and proof of such registration shall be 
provided, upon request, to any peace officer requesting it. Out-of-state UTV 
operators must provide appropriate proof of registration from their home state 
upon request by any peace officer. 

4. UTVs may only be operated on the roadways between the hours of 6:00 a.m. 
and 10:30 p.m. 

5. Operators of UTVs must adhere to noise restrictions set forth under North 
Liberty Code Chapter 53. 

6. UTVs must display lighted headlamps and taillamps at all times while the vehicle 
is operated on City streets or highways. 

7. Operators of UTVs must adhere to all traffic and parking laws, codes, rules, and 
regulations applicable to other motor vehicles, unless directed otherwise by this 
chapter. 

8. UTVs must be equipped with: 

A. Operational turn signal lamps with a manually operated switch 
controlled by the driver. 

B. Operational speedometer, calibrated in miles per hour, which is fully 
illuminated when the headlamps are activated. 

C. Operational horn with a switch controlled by the driver. 

D. Two operational headlamps and taillamps must be affixed to each side 
on the front and back of the UTV. Taillamps shall be red and include a stop 
lamp actuated by pressing the brake pedal. The use of lightbars, 
spotlights, or decorative lights is not permitted while the UTV is being 
operated on City streets or highways. 

E. Rear-facing mirror providing the operator with a clear view of the rear. 

F. Operational muffler, working in good order, which complies with the 
standards and procedures required by Iowa Code Section 321I.12 and 
North Liberty Code of Ordinances Chapter 53. 



North Liberty – 2025  Ordinance Number 2025-03 
Page 3 
 

9. All occupants, except as noted below, must wear safety belts or safety 
harnesses which meet the definition of a safety belt or safety harness set forth by 
Iowa Code Section 321.445 while the UTV is in motion. 

A. Children under one year old and weighing less than 20 pounds must be 
secured in a rear-facing child restraint system while the UTV is motion. 

B. Children ages one to six years must be secured in a child restraint 
system (safety seat or booster seat) while the UTV is in motion. 

(1) A child restraint system is a specially designed seating system, 
including a belt positioning seat or booster seat which meets 
federal motor vehicle safety standards. The child restraint system 
must be used in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions, 
the child must be secured in the child restraint, and the child 
restraint must be properly secured to the UTV. 

C. No animals will be transported in the cargo portion or bed of a UTV 
unless they are contained within an enclosure secured to the UTV. 

10. UTV doors or nets must be closed during operation if so equipped. 

11. The number of passengers in a UTV shall not exceed the number of factory-
installed seats in the UTV. 

12. No open containers of alcohol shall be allowed while the UTV is being operated. 

13. Drivers may not operate a UTV under the influence of intoxicating liquor or 
narcotics as prescribed under Iowa Code Chapter 321J. 

14. No UTV will be operated in a careless or reckless manner so as to: endanger 
any person; cause injury or damage to person or property; create unnecessary 
skidding or sliding; or cause a wheel or wheels to lose traction or contact with the 
ground. 

 
SECTION 3.  REPEALER.  All Ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions 
of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 4.  SCRIVENER’S ERROR.  The correction of typographical errors which do not affect 
the intent of the ordinance may be authorized by the City Clerk or the Clerk’s designee without 
further public hearing. 
 
SECTION 5.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be 
adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 



North Liberty – 2025  Ordinance Number 2025-03 
Page 4 
 

Ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 
unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 6. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final 
passage, approval and publication as provided by law.  
 
First reading on February 11, 2025. 
Second reading on ____________________, 2025. 
Third and final reading on ____________________, 2025. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
_______________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR    
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the 
City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
_______________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 
I certify that the forgoing was published as Ordinance No.                    in the Cedar Rapids Gazette 
on the _____ day of _________________, 2025.   
 
_______________________________      
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

Snow Emergency and 
Parking Citation Appeals 
Ordinance Amendment  



ORDINANCE NO. _______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTERS 69 AND 70 OF THE  
NORTH LIBERTY CODE OF ORDINANCES CONCERNING SNOW 

EMERGENCIES AND CONTESTED PARKING CITATION APPEALS 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT OF PARKING ORDINANCE.  Chapter 69.10 of the North Liberty 
Code of Ordinances is amended to read as follows: 
 

69.10 SNOW EMERGENCY 
   The purpose of this section is to provide forcreate a system whereby persons 
arefor the public declaration and notifiedcation of snow emergencies. Limiting 
parking on public streets during times of heavy snowfall or other inclement winter 
weather leads to more effective snow removal, which in turn reduces traffic 
congestion and lowers the likelihood of injury and property damage from traffic 
accidents Without such an ordinance, cars remain parked on certain streets and 
effective plowing is curtailed.  Consequently, parking places are hard to obtain and 
cars often park too far from the curb, creating a hazard to other motorists.  
   1.   A snow emergency shall automatically go into effect when snow accumulation 
reaches two inches.  At such time as two inches of snow accumulates on City 
streets, a snow emergency will go into effect and the parking restrictions set forth 
herein shall be in effect immediately and without further notice.  The City may 
provide additional notice of the snow emergency as it deems appropriate and 
necessary. 
   12.   In addition to the provision for automatic snow emergency set forth in 
subsection 1 above, wWhenever the City’s Street Superintendent or designeethe 
Mayor  determines, on the basis of falling snow, sleet, freezing rain, or on the basis 
of a credible weather forecast,, that weather conditions will make it necessary 
forthat motor vehicle traffic be expedited and that parking on City streets be 
prohibited or restricted for snow plowing or other public safety purposes, the 
Street Superintendent or designeethe Mayor  may declare a snow emergency by 
notifying the City Clerk.   
   23.   No person shall park, abandon, or leave unattended any vehicle on any public 
street during an automatic or declared snow emergency. 
   34.   An automatic snow emergency shall take effect immediately when snow 
accumulation reaches two inches.  A declared snow emergency shall take effect at 



a time set by the Street Superintendent or designeethe Mayor , but not earlier than 
two hours after it is declared.  The Street SuperintendentThe Mayor  shall declare 
a snow emergency by notifying the City Community Relations Director or designee 
Clerk, stating the beginning time and, if known, the ending time for the snow 
emergency.  If the office of the Clerk is closed, the Mayor shall file such notice 
promptly when the office next is opened during normal business hours.  The Street 
Mayor Superintendent may cancel such declaration or change the beginning or 
ending time.  Notice shall be given for such cancellations or changes in the same 
manner as the original snow emergency declaration.  The City ClerkCommunity 
Relations Director or designee shall then ensure that all notices concerningof 
declared snow emergencies isare promulgated published in a timely manner to the 
public by all appropriate means, including publication on the City’s website: 
www.northlibertyiowa.org, as well as promulgate by the same means the 
cancellation of any snow emergencies. 
   45.   Enforcement and Towing.  Any person who violates the provisions of this 
section shall be subject to criminal prosecution in accordance with Chapter 70 and 
to civil enforcement in accordance with Chapter 43.  Each 12-hour period that a 
vehicle is parked or allowed to remain on any street in violation of this section 
constitutes a separate and distinct offense.  Any vehicles found to be parked where 
not permitted during a snow emergency may be impounded in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 70.06. 
   56.   Appeal.  A violation of this section may be appealed to the City Administrator 
within thirty (30) days of the date of the violation and prior to a complaint being 
filed in District Court.  In the event of a timely appeal, the City Administrator shall 
conduct a summary review and then either determine that the case will be enforced 
in accordance with the provisions of this section and Chapter 70 or, in the 
alternative, order administratively that the case be dismissed.  

 
SECTION 2.  AMENDMENT OF TRAFFIC CODE ENFORCEMENT PROCEDURE 
ORDINANCE.  Chapter 70.03 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances is amended to read as 
follows: 
 

70.03 PARKING VIOLATIONS. 
1. Uncontested Violations. Uncontested vViolations of parking restrictions 

regulations imposed by Chapter 69 of this Code of Ordinances shall be 
charged upon a simple notice of a fine payable at the office of the City 
Clerk. The fine for improper use of a persons with disabilities parking permit 
is two hundred dollars ($200.00). The fine for illegal parking in a fire lane is 



one hundred dollars ($100.00). The fine for snow emergency parking 
violations is twenty-five dollars ($25.00). The fine for all other violations 
shall be in the amount of ten dollars ($10.00) and if such fine is not paid 
within thirty (30) days, it shall be increased by five dollars ($5.00). 

1.2. Contested Violations. Violations of parking regulations charged by simple 
notice under Paragraph 1 above may be appealed by written notice 
asserting the basis for such appeal to the Chief of Police or the Chief of 
Police’s designee within thirty (30) days of the date of the violation, and 
prior to a complaint being filed in District Court. In the event of a timely 
appeal, the Chief of Police or Chief of Police’s designee shall conduct a 
summary review and determine whether the violation is to be sustained, or 
in the alternative, order an administrative dismissal. 

 
SECTION 3.  REPEALER.  All Ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions 
of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 4.  SCRIVENER’S ERROR.  The correction of typographical errors which do not affect 
the intent of the ordinance may be authorized by the City Clerk or the Clerk’s designee without 
further public hearing. 
 
SECTION 5.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be 
adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 
Ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 
unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 5. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final 
passage, approval and publication as provided by law.  
 
First reading on ____________________, 2025. 
Second reading on ____________________, 2025. 
Third and final reading on ____________________, 2025. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
_______________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR    
 
ATTEST: 
 



I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the 
City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
_______________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 
I certify that the forgoing was published as Ordinance No.                    in the Cedar Rapids Gazette 
on the _____ day of _________________, 2025.   
 
_______________________________      
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



North Liberty – 2025  Ordinance Number 2025-01 
Page 1 
 

Ordinance No. 2025-04 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTERS 69 AND 70 OF THE  
NORTH LIBERTY CODE OF ORDINANCES CONCERNING 
SNOW EMERGENCIES AND CONTESTED PARKING CITATION 
APPEALS 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT OF PARKING ORDINANCE.  Chapter 69.10 of the North Liberty 
Code of Ordinances is amended to read as follows: 
 

69.10 SNOW EMERGENCY 
   The purpose of this section is to create a system for the public declaration and 
notification of snow emergencies. Limiting parking on public streets during times 
of heavy snowfall or other inclement winter weather leads to more effective snow 
removal, which in turn reduces traffic congestion and lowers the likelihood of injury 
and property damage from traffic accidents.  
   1.   Whenever the City’s Street Superintendent or designee determines, on the 
basis of falling snow, sleet, freezing rain, or on the basis of a credible weather 
forecast, that weather conditions will make it necessary for parking on City streets 
be prohibited or restricted for snow plowing or public safety purposes, the Street 
Superintendent or designee may declare a snow emergency.   
   2.   No person shall park, abandon, or leave unattended any vehicle on any public 
street during a snow emergency. 
   3.    A snow emergency shall take effect at a time set by the Street 
Superintendent or designee, but not earlier than two hours after it is declared.  The 
Street Superintendent shall declare a snow emergency by notifying the City 
Community Relations Director or designee, stating the beginning time and, if 
known, the ending time for the snow emergency. The Street Superintendent may 
cancel such declaration or change the beginning or ending time.  The Community 
Relations Director or designee shall then ensure that all notices concerning snow 
emergencies are published in a timely manner to the public by all appropriate 
means, including publication on the City’s website: www.northlibertyiowa.org. 
   4.   Enforcement and Towing.  Any person who violates the provisions of this 
section shall be subject to criminal prosecution in accordance with Chapter 70 and 
to civil enforcement in accordance with Chapter 3.  Each 12-hour period that a 
vehicle is parked or allowed to remain on any street in violation of this section 



North Liberty – 2025  Ordinance Number 2025-01 
Page 2 
 

constitutes a separate and distinct offense.  Any vehicles found to be parked where 
not permitted during a snow emergency may be impounded in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 70.06. 

 
SECTION 2.  AMENDMENT OF TRAFFIC CODE ENFORCEMENT PROCEDURE 
ORDINANCE.  Chapter 70.03 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances is amended to read as 
follows: 
 

70.03 PARKING VIOLATIONS. 
1. Uncontested Violations. Violations of parking regulations imposed by 

Chapter 69 of this Code of Ordinances shall be charged upon a simple 
notice of a fine payable at the office of the City Clerk. The fine for improper 
use of a persons with disabilities parking permit is two hundred dollars 
($200.00). The fine for illegal parking in a fire lane is one hundred dollars 
($100.00). The fine for snow emergency parking violations is twenty-five 
dollars ($25.00). The fine for all other violations shall be in the amount of 
ten dollars ($10.00) and if such fine is not paid within thirty (30) days, it shall 
be increased by five dollars ($5.00). 

2. Contested Violations. Violations of parking regulations charged by simple 
notice under Paragraph 1 above may be appealed by written notice 
asserting the basis for such appeal to the Chief of Police or the Chief of 
Police’s designee within thirty (30) days of the date of the violation, and 
prior to a complaint being filed in District Court. In the event of a timely 
appeal, the Chief of Police or Chief of Police’s designee shall conduct a 
summary review and determine whether the violation is to be sustained, or 
in the alternative, order an administrative dismissal. 

 
SECTION 3.  REPEALER.  All Ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions 
of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 4.  SCRIVENER’S ERROR.  The correction of typographical errors which do not affect 
the intent of the ordinance may be authorized by the City Clerk or the Clerk’s designee without 
further public hearing. 
 
SECTION 5.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be 
adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 
Ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 
unconstitutional. 
 



North Liberty – 2025  Ordinance Number 2025-01 
Page 3 
 

SECTION 5. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final 
passage, approval and publication as provided by law.  
 
First reading on February 11, 2025. 
Second reading on ____________________, 2025. 
Third and final reading on ____________________, 2025. 
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
_______________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR    
 
ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the 
City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
_______________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 
I certify that the forgoing was published as Ordinance No.                    in the Cedar Rapids Gazette 
on the _____ day of _________________, 2025.   
 
_______________________________      
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

Zoning Code Ordinance 
Amendment  



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 





North Liberty – 2025  Ordinance Number 2025-05 
Page 1 
 

Ordinance No. 2025-05 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTERS 167 AND 169 OF THE 
NORTH LIBERTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, GOVERNING 
DEFINITIONS OF AND REGULATIONS FOR FENCES AND 
ACCESSORY STRUCTURES AND USES 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY, IOWA: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT OF ORDINANCE. Section 167.01 of the North Liberty Code of 
Ordinances, is amended to modify the definition “gross floor area” and add the definitions of 
“fence” and “shade structure”. 
 
“Floor area, gross” means the sum of the horizontal areas of floors of a building measured from 
the exterior face of exterior walls or, if appropriate, from the centerline of dividing walls including, 
but not limited to courts, decks, porches when covered by a roof. 
 
"Fence" means a vertical structure used to provide privacy, visual or otherwise, or for protection, 
to identify or demark boundaries, or for containment and/or confinement.  
 
“Structure, Shade” means an attached or freestanding structure with a temporary or permanent 
roof and/or walls designed to provide protection from the sun and rain. 
 
SECTION 2.  AMENDMENT OF ORDINANCE. Subsection 9 of Section 169.04 of the North 
Liberty Code of Ordinances, is amended as follows: 
 
9. Prohibited Fence Material. 

The following fences are prohibited, except as provided in this chapter or for permitted 
agricultural residential gardening uses to protect against rodents, vermin, and pests: 
A. Metal fences with the exception of chain link, wrought iron, and simulated wrought 

iron  
B. Electrical fences or any kind of electrically charged fences 
C. Barbed wire, razor wire, spikes, nails, etc. 
D. Wood panel fence  
E. Plywood or oriented strand board (OSB) 
F. Pallets or any used repurposed material 
G. Cloth, fabric, canvas, plastic sheets, tarps, etc. as primary materials 
H. Chicken wire 
I. Snow fence, except as provided below  
A snow fence may be erected on a temporary basis, not to exceed six months, to 
alleviate the adverse effects of drifting snow or to warn and prevent access to an area by 



North Liberty – 2025  Ordinance Number 2025-05 
Page 2 
 

unauthorized persons. When erected on a temporary basis to prevent access of 
unauthorized persons to any area, a snow/safety fence shall be removed within 24 hours 
after the elimination of the reason for which the fence was erected originally. 

 
SECTION 3.  AMENDMENT OF ORDINANCE. Preamble and Subsections 1, 2 and 3 of Section 
169.05 of the North Liberty Code of Ordinances, is amended as follows: 
 
Accessory structures and uses shall occupy the same lot as the main use or building. No lot shall 
have an accessory structure or use without the principal use. No accessory structure shall be 
used as a dwelling unit. Accessory structures shall be constructed out of material intended for 
long-term exposure to the elements. Prohibited materials include, but are not limited to cloth, 
fabric, canvas, plastic sheets and tarps. Exceptions to the materials prohibition includes plastic 
for greenhouses and fabric and/or canvas for shade structures. Shipping containers are 
prohibited as an accessory structure.   
1. Yard Encroachment.  

No accessory building or use shall be located within any yard unless authorized by this 
Section and/or Section 169.08. 

2. Freestanding Garages, Storage Buildings, Greenhouses, Gazebos, Pergolas, and other 
Similar Structures greater than 200 Square Feet Gross Floor Area.  
A. RS, RD and ID districts shall be subject to the following: 

(1) A maximum of one freestanding garage building, greenhouse, gazebo, 
pergola, or other similar structure greater than 200 square feet gross floor 
area. 

(2)   Freestanding garages or combination of structures, which include a 
freestanding garage: A maximum gross floor area of 850 square feet. RS 
district exception: on properties exceeding .5 acres but less than.75 acres, 
the maximum gross floor area shall be 1,000 square feet. On properties 
exceeding .75 acres but less than one acre, the maximum gross floor area 
shall be 1,200 square feet. On properties exceeding one acre, the 
maximum gross floor area shall be 1,400 square feet. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, the gross floor area shall not exceed the total footprint of the 
residence. 

(3) All other structures or combinations of structures, which do not include a 
freestanding garage: A maximum gross floor area of 600 square feet. 

(4)   Structures as described in subparagraphs (1) and (2) above may be 
located within the rear yard subject to a five-foot side and rear setback. 

(5) Structures as described in subparagraphs (1) and (2) above may be 
located within a side yard subject to meeting the required side and rear 
yard setbacks for the main building. 

(6) Structures as described in subparagraphs (1) and (2) above shall be 
situated a minimum 20 feet from a public or private right-of-way or 
improved alley. 



North Liberty – 2025  Ordinance Number 2025-05 
Page 3 
 

(7) Structures as described in subparagraphs (1) and (2) above shall not be 
located within any utility, sewer, drainage, access or walkway easement, 
where such easement is dedicated to the City or to public use. 

(8) Structures as described in subparagraphs (1) and (2) above shall have a 
maximum height of 15 feet. 

B. RM district. 
(1) The RM District has no maximum number of structures, however, the 

aggregate floor area of all freestanding garages, greenhouses, gazebos, 
pergolas and other similar structures shall not exceed the aggregate 
footprint of the main buildings. 

(2) Freestanding garages, greenhouses, gazebos, pergolas and other similar 
structures may be located within the rear yard subject to a 10-foot side 
and rear setback. 

(3) A minimum 20 feet from a public or private right-of-way or improved alley 
is required for all freestanding garages, greenhouses, gazebos, pergolas 
and other similar structures. 

(4) Freestanding garages, greenhouses, gazebos, pergolas and other similar 
structures shall not be located within any utility, sewer, drainage, access or 
walkway easement, where such easement is dedicated to the City or to 
public use. 

(5) Freestanding garages, greenhouses, gazebos, pergolas and other similar 
structures shall have a maximum height of 15 feet. 

3. Storage Buildings and Greenhouses.  
A.   RS and RD districts shall be subject to the following: 

(1) A maximum two storage buildings, greenhouses or structures designed for 
other similar use, or any combination thereof, may be located within the 
rear yard. 

(2) Maximum 200 square feet gross floor area per structure. 
(3) Storage buildings, greenhouses and other similar structures shall have a 

minimum of five feet from the side and rear property line. 
(4) A minimum of 10 feet from a public or private right-of-way alley is required 

for all storage buildings, greenhouses, and other similar structures. 
(5) Storage buildings, greenhouses, and other similar structures shall not be 

located within any utility, sewer, drainage, access or walkway easement, 
where such easement is dedicated to the City or to public use. 

(6) Storage buildings, greenhouses, and other similar structures shall have a 
maximum building height of 10 feet. 

B.   R-MH district shall be subject to the following: 
(1) A maximum one storage building, greenhouse or structure designed for 

other similar use, or any combination therefore, may be located on the 
same space as the manufactured home, and only in the side or rear yard. 

(2) A maximum of 144 square feet gross floor area is permitted for any such 
structure as described in subparagraph (1) above. 



North Liberty – 2025  Ordinance Number 2025-05 
Page 4 
 

(3) Structures as described in subparagraph (1) above shall be located a 
minimum of 10 feet from a public or private right-of-way alley. 

(4) Structures as described in subparagraph (1) above shall not be located 
within any utility, sewer, drainage, access or walkway easement, where 
such easement is dedicated to the City or to public use. 

(5) Structures as described in subparagraph (1) above shall have a maximum 
building height of 10 feet. 

 
SECTION 4.  REPEALER.  All Ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions 
of this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 5.  SCRIVENER’S ERROR.  The correction of typographical errors which do not affect 
the intent of the ordinance may be authorized by the City Clerk or the Clerk’s designee without 
further public hearing. 
 
SECTION 6.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be 
adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 
Ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 
unconstitutional. 
 
SECTION 7. WHEN EFFECTIVE. This ordinance shall be in effect from and after its final 
passage, approval and publication as provided by law.  
 
First consideration on February 11, 2025. 
Second consideration on  
Third consideration and adoption on  
 
CITY OF NORTH LIBERTY: 
 
_______________________________ 
CHRIS HOFFMAN, MAYOR    
 
  



North Liberty – 2025  Ordinance Number 2025-05 
Page 5 
 

ATTEST: 
 
I, Tracey Mulcahey, City Clerk of the City of North Liberty, hereby certify that at a meeting of the 
City Council of said City, held on the above date, among other proceedings, the above was 
adopted. 
 
_______________________________ 
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 
 
 
I certify that the forgoing was published as Ordinance No.                    in the Cedar Rapids Gazette 
on the _____ day of _________________, 2025.   
 
_______________________________      
TRACEY MULCAHEY, CITY CLERK 



 

Additional Information  



 

  

 

To North Liberty Mayor and City Council Members 
CC Ryan Heiar, City Administrator 
From Brian Platz, Fire Chief 
Date February 20th, 2025 
Re Fire Department Report to Council – February 2025 

As we start each new year, we attempt to identify a slogan that we can integrate into our daily approach.  
This year we chose “the little things matter”.  This slogan speaks to how we stow our gear, how we train, a 
renewed emphasis on ensuring that trucks are maintained and inventoried, how we can reduce wear and 
tear on equipment, how we can better deploy our resources, how we treat each other, etc.  It’s a slogan 
that shakes hands with all that we do, and we’re trying to uncover the little things that we can do better.   
 

A few items to brief you on… 
 

We continue to plan for a badge and bugle pinning ceremony, scheduled for April 13th at 10:30am.  Seven 

of our new members will be receiving their badges following the first year with the NLFD.  We also have 

three new fire officers, two at the rank of lieutenant and one at the rank of captain, that will be receiving 

their collar bugles.  Proudly, we will also present three of our members with the lifesaving award for their 

actions to save two children trapped in an apartment fire.  This will be a great opportunity to celebrate our 

successes this past year.  We hope some of you can join us. 

 

We just went through an orientation process that brought 11 new members into the department.  Chief 

Schmooke and Capt. Humston installed a group that includes two part time, six paid per call, and three 

EMS responders – picture below.  We now must put each group through a specific training program to 

ensure proficiency before allowing them to respond to the needs of the public.  New members inject 

energy into the organization, and we are excited that they are finally here.   
 

 

 



Year Percent
January February March April May June July August September October November December To Date To Date

North Liberty 133 133 84.71%
Madison Township 5 5 3.18%
Penn Township 10 10 6.37%

Mutual Aid 9 9 5.73%
Total Responses 157 157

Year Percent
January February March April May June July August September October November December To Date To Date

100 - Fire 3 3 1.91%
200 - Over Pressure, Overheat
300 - EMS 89 89 56.69%
400 - Hazardous Condition 2 2 1.27%
500 - Service Call 15 15 9.55%
600 - Good Intent Call 21 21 13.38%
700 - False Alarm & False Call 26 26 16.56%
800 - Severe Weather
900 - Special Incident Type 1 1 0.64%
Total Responses 157 157

North Liberty Fire Department
2025 Monthly/YTD Response Report

North Liberty Fire Department Responses By Fire District

North Liberty Fire Department Responses By Type of Incident

North Liberty
85%

Madison 
Township

3%

Penn Township
6%

Mutual Aid
6%

2024 District Responses YTD
(Rounded Percentage)

North Liberty Madison Township Penn Township Mutual Aid

100 - Fire, 1.91%

200 - Over 
Pressure, 

Overheat, 0.00%

300 - EMS, 
56.69%

400 - Hazardous 
Condition, 1.27%

500 - Service Call, 
9.55%

600 - Good 
Intent Call, …

700 - False Alarm 
& False Call, 

16.56%

800 - Severe 
Weather, 0.00%

900 - Special 
Incident Type, 

0.64%

2024 Type of Incidents YTD 
(Percentage)



North Liberty Fire Department Responses By Risk Management Zone
Year Percent

January February March April May June July August September October November December To Date To Date
1000 - Mutual Aid 9 9 5.73%
1001 - City of North Liberty 6 6 3.82%
1002 - City of North Liberty 10 10 6.37%
1003 - City of North Liberty 35 35 22.29%
1004 - City of North Liberty 22 22 14.01%
1005 - City of North Liberty 26 26 16.56%
1006 - City of North Liberty 1 1 0.64%
1007 - City of North Liberty 11 11 7.01%
1008 - City of North Liberty 22 22 14.01%
1009 - Madison Township 5 5 3.18%
1010 - Penn Township 10 10 6.37%

157 157

North Liberty Fire Department
2024 Monthly/YTD Response Report



Year
January February March April May June July August September October November December To Date

Total Responses for Month 157 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 157

Average Responders per Incident (Including Members at Station) 5.24
# Incidents with 2 or less Responders 5 Year
% Incidents with 2 or less Responders 3.2% To Date

90th Percentile Turnout Time - (Minutes) 2:50 2:50

Year
January February March April May June July August September October November December To Date

Total Emergent (Including Downgraded) Responses for Month 99 99

# of Incidents with Turnout Time 2 Minutes or Less - PPC/Admin 46
# of Incidents with Turnout Time 2 Minutes or Less - Part-Time 14
# of Incidents with Turnout Time 2 Minutes or Less - Full-Time
# of Incidents with Turnout Time 2 Minutes or Less - Total 60
% Incidents with Turnout Time 2 Minutes or Less 60.6% #DIV/0! #DIV/0! ##### ##### ##### ##### ###### #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

**(Turnout Time is defined as Dispatch Time to Unit Enroute Time)(PPC-Paid Per Call)(PT-Part Time)

Year Percent
January February March April May June July August September October November December To Date To Date

Auto Aid - Coralville (52001) 2 2 1.27%
Auto Aid - Iowa City (52003) 1 1 0.64%
Auto Aid - Solon (52008) 2 2 1.27%
Auto Aid - Swisher (52009) 0 0.00%
Auto Aid - Tiffin (52010) 4 4 2.55%
Mutual Aid - Other Fire Departments 0 0.00%

Total Responses 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 5.73%

Year Percent
January February March April May June July August September October November December To Date To Date

Auto Aid - Coralville (52001) 2 2 1.27%
Auto Aid - Iowa City (52003) 0 0.00%
Auto Aid - Solon (52008) 0 0.00%
Auto Aid - Swisher (52009) 0 0.00%
Auto Aid - Tiffin (52010) 3 3 1.91%
Mutual Aid - Other Fire Departments 0 0.00%

Total Responses 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 3.18%

North Liberty Fire Department Auto/Mutual Aid Given

North Liberty Fire Department Auto/Mutual Aid Received

North Liberty Fire Department
2025 Monthly/YTD Response Report

North Liberty Fire Department Response Statistics (All Incidents)

North Liberty Fire Department Emergent Response Turnout Statistics  (Lights & Sirens)




